VEMBERS

Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or
Senat or

VEMBERS

Al nmem

ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE

April 26, 2006
8:44 a.m
PRESENT
Ral ph Seeki ns, Chair
Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair

Gene Therri aul t
Hollis French
G et chen Cuess
ABSENT

ers present

COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 316

"An Act
el i m nat

and determ nation of
based | egislative review for

anending the Al aska Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act to
e the opportunity for judicial review of the findings
t he conm ssioner of revenue on which are
a proposed contract for paynents in

lieu of taxes and for the other purposes described in that Act;
and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 316
SHORT Tl TLE: COURT REVI EW OF STRANDED GAS DECI SI ON
SPONSOR('s) : JUDI Cl ARY
04/ 13/ 06 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 13/ 06 (S) JUD
04/ 19/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 19/ 06 (S) Heard & Held
04/ 19/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)
04/ 20/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 20/ 06 (S) Heard & Held
04/ 20/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)
04/ 21/ 06 (S) JUD AT 9: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 21/ 06 (S) Heard & Held
04/ 21/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)
04/ 22/ 06 (S) JUD AT 9: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 22/ 06 (S -- Continued from 04/ 20/ 06 --
SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 26, 2006



04/ 25/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 25/ 06 (S) Heard & Hel d
04/ 25/ 06 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

Larry Ostrovsky, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Ol and Gas Section

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding SB 316

Jim Bal dwi n, Attorney
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding SB 316

Jono Stewart
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 316

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:44:35 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Gene Therriault, Getchen Guess, Charlie Huggins,
and Chair Ral ph Seeki ns.

SB 316- COURT REVI EW OF STRANDED GAS DECI SI ON

8:45: 00 AM
CHAI R RALPH SEEKI NS announced SB 316 to be up for consideration.

LARRY OSTROVSKY, Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Departnent of
Law (DQL), introduced hinself.

8:46: 03 AM

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS stated her confusion on page 3, lines 6-7
was the intent behind the findings and determi nations relied on
by the Legislature. She asked whether these were the final
findings and if the chapter should refer back to 430(a)(3),
whi ch states the comm ssioner’s findings.

CHAIR SEEKINS stated his dilemma was that it appears that the

commi ssioner goes through the entire process of developing a
contract, gathers information, analyzes it and conmes up with his

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 26, 2006



final findings. So now there are several findings; whether or
not it conplies with the law, whether or not it neets the best
financial interest of the state.

MR. OSTROVSKY interjected those two would be incorporated into
one finding.

CHAI R SEEKI NS stated those two things have to be determ ned.

SENATOR GUESS countered that was inplied but .430(a)(3) states
what is to be determned is whether the proposed contract and
anendnents nmeet the requirenents and purposes of the Chapter.

CHAI R SEEKI NS agr eed.

SENATOR @QUESS said fiscal interest is not nentioned. It is
i nplied but not specified.

CHAI R SEEKINS said .430(b) would indicate that the comm ssioner
has to have a contract that is in the long-term fiscal interest
of the state.

SENATOR GUESS asserted that is just the hurdle to submt the
contract to the governor.

CHAIR SEEKINS referred to .400(a)(1-2) and said the conm ssioner
has to make prelimnary findings and a determ nation that the
proposed contract terns are in the long-term fiscal interest of
t he state.

SENATOR HOLLI S FRENCH agr eed.

CHAIR SEEKINS said along with that, as soon as the comm ssioner
makes the prelimnary finding under .310(f), the entire body of
information other than the information that is required to be
kept confidential beconmes a public docunent.

8:52: 35 AM

MR. OSTROVSKY said that is correct but the Stranded Gas
Devel opnent Act (SGDA) says it becones a public docunment subject
to whatever privileges mght exist under |aw.

CHAIR SEEKINS said at this point even the docunents that m ght
not agree with the commssioner’s final findings are public
docunents under the Public Information Act.

8:54:04 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 26, 2006



SENATOR FRENCH referred to the public docunents and said it was
important to keep in mnd the difference between those and the
“universe of information you can acquire through the discover
process when chall enging a finding.”

CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Ostrovsky the distinction between the
t wo.

MR, OSTROVSKY said with respect to certain docunents, for
exanpl e attorney-client privilege, there would be no difference.

CHAlI R SEEKI NS asked about internal menoranduns.
MR. OSTROVSKY said that would be part of the public docunents.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked about a nenprandum from the DOL to the
conm ssi oner.

VR. OSTROVSKY  responded ordinarily that woul d  not be
di scover abl e.

8:56: 00 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked who woul d deci de what is di scoverabl e.

MR. OSTROVSKY responded, “A judge.”

SENATOR FRENCH asked what, besi des docunent s, coul d be
di scover abl e.

MR. OSTROVSKY replied depositions and testinony.

SENATOR FRENCH recognized that testinony and depositions 1is
sonmething the commttee has not explored but could be very
i nformative.

MR. OSTROVSKY responded normally that type of discovery is not
used in adnministrative chall enges because the court |ooks to the
record to see where the record supports the decision. The burden
is on the agency to show that the record supports the decision.

CHAIR SEEKINS posed a hypothetical situation of two opposing
nodel s and asked whether both of the nodels would be nmade public
docunent s.

MR. OSTROVSKY said he didn't see why not although there could be

problenms with confidentiality. In that case the court could
fashion a protective order for the confidential data.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 26, 2006



9:00: 04 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS reference AS 40.25.110 and read the statute.

Sec. 40.25.110. Public records open to inspection and
copyi ng; fees.

(a) Unless specifically provided otherw se, the
public records of all public agencies are open to
i nspection by the public under reasonable rules during
regular office hours. The public officer having the
custody of public records shall give on request and
paynent of the fee established under this section or
AS 40.25.115 a certified copy of the public record.

(b) Except as otherwi se provided in this section,
the fee for copying public records may not exceed the
standard unit cost of duplication established by the
publ i c agency.

(c) If the production of records for one
requester in a calendar nonth exceeds five person-
hours, the public agency shall require the requester
to pay the personnel costs required during the nonth
to conplete the search and copying tasks. The
personnel costs may not exceed the actual salary and
benefit costs for the personnel tinme required to
perform the search and copying tasks. The requester
shall pay the fee before the records are disclosed,
and the public agency may require paynent in advance
of the search

(d) A public agency may reduce or waive a fee
when the public agency determnes that the reduction
or waiver is in the public interest. Fee reductions
and waivers shall be uniformy applied anbng persons
who are simlarly situated. A public agency may waive
a fee of $5 or less if the fee is less than the cost
to the public agency to arrange for paynent.

(e) Notwithstanding other provisions of this
section to the ~contrary, the Bureau of Vital
Statistics and the library archives in the Departnent
of Education and Early Developnent my continue to
charge the same fees that they were charging on
Septenber 25, 1990, for performng record searches,
and may increase the fees as necessary to recover
agency expenses on the same basis that was used by the
agency i mredi atel y bef ore Sept enber 25, 1990.
Not wi t hstanding other provisions of this section to
the contrary, the Departnent of Comerce, Comunity,
and Economi c Devel opnent may continue to charge the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 26, 2006



same fees that the former Departnent of Comerce and
Econom ¢ Devel opnment was charging on July 1, 1999, for
performng record searches for matters related to
banki ng, securities, and corporations, and may
increase the fees as necessary to recover agency
expenses on the sanme basis that was used by the forner
Depar t ment of Commerce and Economic Devel opnent
i medi ately before July 1, 1999.

(f) Notwithstanding other provisions of this
section to the contrary, the Board of Regents of the
Uni versity of Al aska may establish reasonable fees for
the inspection and copying of public records,
i ncludi ng record searches.

(g0 Notwithstanding other provisions of this
section to the contrary, the board of directors of the
Al aska Railroad Corporation may establish reasonable
fees for the inspection and copying of public records,
i ncl udi ng record searches.

(h) Notwithstanding other provisions of this
section to the <contrary, the judicial branch my
establish by court rule reasonable fees for the
i nspection and copying of public records, including
record searches.

(1) Electronic information that is provided in
printed form shall be nade available w thout codes or
synbol s, unless acconpanied by an explanation of the
codes or synbol s.

CHAIR SEEKINS said Senator French was, “getting nore into
interrogatories nore than he is discoverable docunents.” He
asked Senat or French whet her he meant to i ndi cate
i nterrogatories.

SENATOR FRENCH said he was tal king about “strictly paper.” The
point is discovery is a broader inquiry than a public records
inquiry.

CHAIR SEEKINS agreed. If all the public docunments, nodels,
anal ysis, and working paper were public docunents; they are
public as soon as the conmi ssioner mnekes his prelimnary
findings, he reiterated.

MR. OSTROVSKY interrupted to say the wuniverse of public
docunents is broader. Under the SGDA, the conm ssioner releases
all the extra reports but there is a universe of docunents that
become public record.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 26, 2006



SENATOR GUESS said she interprets (f) to be nuch narrower than
“every public docunent” because anyone could say certain
di scussi ons or docunents weren't relevant to the decision.

CHAIR SEEKINS opined if it weren't sonething that was relevant
to the conversation, it wouldn't have been confidential.

MR. OSTROVSKY said normally all docunents in state governnent
are public records but sone docunents are covered by privilege.
The Stranded Gas Devel opnent Act puts a |layer of protection on
certain docunments for a limted period of time to allow
negotiations to go forward. Those are the docunments that reflect
and incorporate state strategy. The commercial docunents do not
necessarily lose their confidentiality but the Act outlines that
those docunents are public records once a contract is
negot i at ed.

9: 06: 07 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether |anguage in the Act should clearly
state that all of the docunents are public.

MR. OSTROVSKY said there is a limted protection for a limted
time. Once there is a proposed contract that disappears.

CHAIR SEEKINS noted once the findings becone prelimnary the
public comment and legislative review period commences with a
m ni mum of 30 days.

MR. OSTROVSKY said that is correct.

CHAI R SEEKINS continued during that 30 days, any person that
wants to could get copies of the docunents.

MR. OSTROVSKY infornmed the conmmttee the conmm ssioner is under
the affirmative duty to release all of the docunents under
.410(2) and the Legislature is also able to see those.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked, “The Legislature is allowed to see the
confidential docunents that would not be public records?”

MR. OSTROVSKY sai d yes.

CHAI R SEEKI NS assumed there was a responsibility on the part of
the Legislature to keep the docunents confidential.

MR. OSTROVSKY agr eed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 26, 2006



CHAI R SEEKINS stated his concern that a person could chall enge
the prelimnary findings based on discovering sone docunents
that they believe should have been used in determning the
contact but weren’'t.

9:09: 54 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said the reason he asked M. Gstrovsky about the
final findings was to | et everybody know that was the trigger to
whi ch peopl e could present a chall enge.

CHAI R SEEKINS nentioned after the legislative review and public
comment, the conmmssioner submits his final findings. Under
current law, he has to determ ne whether the contract neets the
requi renents of the law and also determne that the contract is
in the long-termfiscal interest of the state.

MR. OSTROVSKY remnded the commttee that after the public
comment period, the conmm ssioner mght need to renegotiate the
contract. At that point in time it beconmes a “final agency
deci sion.”

SENATOR GUESS asked the difference between “final findings and
determ nations” and “final agency decision.”

MR. OSTROVSKY said none. The final agency decision is what a
person would file an appeal from Findings and determ nations
are final agency deci sions.

9:15: 06 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS remnded the commttee that in 1998 the
Legislature called “tinme out” and inserted thenselves into the
process. The Legi sl ature now becones the final body to determ ne
whether or not it neets the requirenents of the Chapter.

SENATOR GUESS said the law currently reads such that the
Legislature gets the contract to review but not the final
findi ngs and det erm nati on.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he could not imagine that they wouldn't get
the final findings.

9:18: 22 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS asked what other information the Legislature is
allowed to | ook at other than the conmm ssioner’s findings.

MR. OSTROVSKY said, “Wuatever it chooses to l|look at.” The
Legi sl ature often hires its own experts.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 26, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS said the information brought to us by the expert
woul d constitute a recommendati on.

MR. OSTROVSKY agr eed.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked whether the findings of the conm ssioner
woul d be any nore than that.

MR. OSTROVSKY said essentially no.

9:20: 15 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS said, “That’s our dilemm.”

SENATOR @QUESS didn't see the dilemmm. It's a decision, she
st aetd.

CHAI R SEEKINS said, “Qur decision is not challengeable unless
it’s unconstitutional.”

SENATOR GUESS said she thought the commttee was nore concerned
about the timng issue.

CHAIR SEEKINS said, “You're right.” He asked whether the |aw
should be able to say, “the Legislature can’'t consider the
contract because the findings and recomendations are going to
be in litigation.”

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT said the commi ssioner’s power and right
to ignore the law is different than the Legislature’ s power to
[indisc] the | aw

9:23:37 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS referred to .430(a)(3) and read:

(3) make final findings and a determ nation as to whether
t he proposed contract and any proposed amendnents prepared under
(2) of this subsection neet the requirements and purposes of
this chapter.

He said it wasn't certifying that they neet; it is as to
“whet her” they neet.

SENATOR GUESS noted that is a final agency deci sion.

9:27:11 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- April 26, 2006



SENATOR GUESS asked M. Ostrovsky whether certification is a
termof art in statute.

MR. OSTROVSKY said, “Not that |'maware of.”

JIM BALDWN, Attorney, said there are instances where duties are
[indisc] in ternms of certification. It is wusually associated
wi th taking an oath.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked M. Baldwin whether the conmm ssioner is
required to certify that his findings are correct and conpl ete.

MR. BALDWN replied the conm ssioner would have to note whether
or not changes woul d need to be nade to the Act.

9:30:12 AM

SENATOR GQUESS countered i f the final findi ngs aren’t
chal l engeable, (if the legislative approval of the contact is
the final say), why have the Stranded Gas Act at all?

MR. BALDWN said it is inportant to keep in mnd the conplete
picture of the SGDA and what is worth challenging at the end of
the day. A person will always have the constitutional right to
chal |l enge a contract.

SENATOR QGUESS said everyone on the committee would take the
constitutionality issue off the table. Nobody wants to slow the
process down but the question is whether to take away the
public’s ability to chall enge.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked M. Baldw n whether a |law could be passed to
specify a block of time for a right to challenge sonething on a
constitutional basis.

MR. BALDWN responded that would have the potential of being
chal | enged. However, there are instances where the court has
limted things for review, such as redistricting of the state
where the court requires that constitutional issues be brought
within 60 days.

9:36: 08 AM
SENATOR FRENCH agreed with M. Baldwin. In the civil arena the
courts can limt a person’s constitutional chall enges.

CHAI R SEEKINS comented the commttee has cone down to the fina

guestion of whether or not the challenge to the final agency
deci sion could be noved to the final step of the process.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- April 26, 2006



MR. OSTROVSKY reported the DOL believes that because the
Legislature retained a role in the process, the agency decision
under SGDA becones but a conponent of the final contract.
Hypot hetically speaking, the Legislature’'s decision could be
i ndependent of the comm ssioner’s.

9:40: 00 AM
SENATOR FRENCH said if it is broader then there is no harm or
imposition on the system to allow a full challenge to the

comm ssioner’s findings. He said the main concern of the
committee is whether or not there could be a court case against
their finding. The final findings and determnation is a term of
art that the courts are confortable working with, but the fina
findings and determ nation of the Legislature is brand new, he
said, and he expressed concern with how a judge woul d proceed on
a |l egal chall enge.

MR. OSTROVSKY replied the DOL would consider the final findings
of the comm ssioner just a step in the process but not a final
step. The challenge would be at the end of the process, he
i ndi cat ed.

SENATOR FRENCH said he was concerned about a “kink in the
system” There is still an executive act function once the
Legislature is finished and so in order to mnimze the anount
of challenges that can be brought, he wanted to nake sure the
commttee establishes the correct place for a chall enge.

9:45: 38 AM
CHAI R SEEKINS agreed that the challenge should take place after
t he execution of the contract.

9:50: 57 AM

SENATOR THERRI AULT added that nobody knows how | ong the Suprene
Court would take to make a decision on the challenge. He asked
whet her the contract could go forward while the court deci des.

MR. OSTROVSKY replied the court would remand the comm ssioner’s
findi ngs.

CHAIR SEEKINS suggested the |anguage, “any challenge to the
findings and determ nation forwarded by the comm ssioner or the
Legi sl ature can not del ay consideration of the contract.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT added the contract would still be able to be
forwarded to the Legislature to begin their process.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 26, 2006



9:53:49 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS said the point is ®“is the threshold of
constitutionality too high?”

SENATOR GUESS asked the reason for maintaining the Stranded Gas
Devel opnent Act. If the contract is good to go, why bother going
t hrough the process of anmending the Act, she asked.

MR. OSTROVSKY responded it was all part of the process. The SGDA
requires the admnistration with sonething they normally aren’t
required to do when they present sonmething to the Legislature.
He said there is a purpose for it.

CHAIR SEEKINS called a brief recess at 10: 06: 00 AM

10: 20: 35 AM

CHAIR SEEKINS called the committee back to order. He inforned
the commttee that he was going to ask the drafter of the bil
to <clarify the |language that any challenge <can’'t delay
consideration of the contract by the Legislature and that the
contract is challengeable for only 120 days after execution of
the contract.

SENATOR GUESS questioned when the challenge would happen. The
current |anguage doesn’t allow for a challenge before the review
of the Legislature.

CHAIR SEEKINS referred the comrittee to section .410(2) in the
Act and said he wants that |anguage to line up with Section 2 of
the bill.

10: 26: 30 AM
JOVD STEWART, Fairbanks, testified in opposition to the bill. He
said it is a bad bill and it would not serve the purpose the

conmmttee is seeking. The record shows that the Legislature was
invited into the process by the Administration in 1998 yet was
not required to participate. It chose to do so and that is not
an “abomnation” as it has been referred as several times in
this commttee. It is an established practice to have the
Legi slature involved in issues involving resource devel opnent.

10: 30: 32 AM

MR. STEWART continued it has been stated several tines in
commttee that the Legislature has sone kind of final power over
the contract and that is not the case. The final decision of
whet her or not the contract is in the best interest of the state

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 26, 2006



and should be carried further is under the governor’s authority.
He encouraged the conmittee to bury the bill.

10: 37: 32 AM
SENATOR HUGAE NS asked M. Ostrovsky to comment on the pending
suit in reference to the gas pipeline.

MR. OSTROVSKY replied the Port Authority has filed an anti-trust
action in federal court against British Petroleum and Exxon
Mobi | but did not el aborate.

CHAI R SEEKINS held the bill in commttee.

There being no further business to cone before the commttee, he
adj ourned the neeting at 10:39:43 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- April 26, 2006



